5

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  
In The Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM CHESTERFIELD COUNTY  
Court of Common Pleas

J. Michael Baxley, Circuit Court Judge

\_\_\_\_\_

Case No. 2013-001415

\_\_\_\_\_

RECEIVED  
FEB 18 2014  
SC Court of Appeals

The State

Respondent,

v.

## STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL

1. DID THE TRIAL COURT ERR WITH A BIAS AND UNFAIR HEARING?
2. DID THE TRIAL COURT ERR IN FAILING TO PRODUCE PRIMA FACIE EVIDENCE OF PROBABLE CAUSE?
3. DID THE TRIAL COURT ERR BY HAVING THE STANDARDS OF A PRO SE AT THE SAME LEVEL AS A LAWYER?
4. DID THE MAGISTRATE COURT ERR IN PERMITTING A SEARCH AND SEIZER THAT VIOLATES FOURTH ADMENDMENTS RIGHTS OF THE APPEALANT?
5. DOES THE AFFIDAVIT SUPPORT THE SEARCH WARRANT ?
6. DOES THE SEARCH WARRANT VIOLATE THE APPELLANTS FOURTH ADMENDMENTS RIGHTS?
7. WAS THERE A SEARCH WARRANT AT TIME OF SEARCH AND SEIZER?
8. DID THE MAGISTRATE COURT ERR IN THE PERMITTING OF SAID E-MAIL AS PROBABLE CAUSE WITHOUT PRIMA FACIE EVIDENCE OR COMPLAINT UNDER OATH?
9. DID THE MAGISTRATE COURT ERR IN PERMITTING MULTIPLE DOUBLE JEOPARDY CHARGES AND VIOLATING?
10. DID ANIMAL CONTROL VIOLATE APEALLANTS 4<sup>th</sup> ADMENDMENTS RIGHTS?
11. WAS CASE BASE ON ASSUMPTION, CONSPIRACY, BARRATRY AND PURGERY?
12. WAS EVIDENCE TAMPERED WITH AFTER MAGISTRATE HEARING ?
13. DID THE CHESTERFIELD ANIMAL CONTROL AND SHERIFF DEPARTMENT TRY TO MISLEAD THE COURT WITH ONLY PARTIAL EVIDENCE ?
14. ARE THE COUNTY ORDINANCE SUMMONS INVALIDE?

15. DID CHESTERFIELD COUNTY ANIMAL CONTROL PROVIDE PUREBRED DOGS TO CHESTERFIELD COUNTY ANIMAL SHELTER AND OTHER RESCUES FOR THE PURPOSE OF FINANCIAL GAIN?
16. DID CHESTERFIELD ANIMAL CONTROL AND SHERIFF DEPARTMENT VIOLATE COURT ORDER AND LITTER CONTROL LAWS?
17. DID CHESTERFIELD ANIMAL CONTROL AND SHERIFF DEPARTMENT BASE THEIR CHARGES ON INVESTIGATION AND FACT OR ON PURELY ON ASSUMPTION?

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On Jan 23, letter in reference to case number 2009-CP-16-540 as to status of case sent to appellant from Darlington Clerk of Court (signed by Jennifer Sanders)

On approximately Jan 31, contacted and informed Darlington Clerk of Court that decision of the hearing was never delivered. DCCoC inform appellant that they would contact Judge Paul M Burch's office as to status.

On approximately Feb 20, appellant contacted DCCoC as to status of case, DCCoC replied they have had no response from Judge Paul M Burch's office (used as a possible torte accusation for anonymous E-mail or call used as probable cause).

On March 4, 2013, Chesterfield Animal Control and Chesterfield Sheriff Department conducted a search and seizer at 1827 Tabernackle Church Rd in Chesterfield county while appellant was at work. Search was conducted in front and back yard along with residency and barn(not supported by warrant) and seized appellants dogs along with one bag of dog food and one large pet carrier(not supported by warrant) . No papers was left at residency or given to appellant. Interviewed Geneva Timmons and her neighbors of Darlington County. Approximately 7pm, appellant informed by a deputy sheriff that search

was conducted and to contact James Lewis. After returning to residence, appellant found damage done by actions of search and seizer and dog food containers strewed throughout yard and residency.

On March 5, 2013 appellant was interrogated by Chesterfield sheriff deputies, a preliminary hearing was held with motion to dismiss refused and court ordered custody of dogs given to Animal Control, ACO Jim McGonigal stated "you wont get out of this on a technicality". Court ordered temporary custody to Chesterfield Animal Control. Asked for copy of anonymous E-mail and was denied.

Appellant shown one complete intact dog carcass and pictures of others (unknown dogs at time of viewing) by ACO Jim McGonigal at Chesterfield County Animal Shelter. Compared appellants dog list to that seized by Animal Control. Appellants list of dogs was identical to Animal Controls list of seized dogs. Warrant was executed by James Lewis. ACO Jim McGonigal threatened appellant with if appellant don't give custody of dogs over to county then he would charge appellant with 31 charges of abandonment and ill-treatment. Dogs was taken to and examined by Hartsville Animal. Appellant took pictures of bowls with food and water. Inspected grave site and found dog carcuses found was dug up, paw and claw marks found on and around grave hole. Search warrant and affidavit dated 3/4/2013, warrant return dated 3/5/2013 of which list dated 3/7/2013@6:07am.

On March 6, seizer was broadcast on WCCB with statements "...anonymous tipster called it in...animal control officers say...abandoned trailer housing..", " , Animal Control appellant receive summon tickets 1884 through and including 1892. ACO Jim McGonigal stated "will deliver rest of the tickets later, too much filling out to do all at one

time”and “I will have the search warrant amended “. Summons tickets numbers 1893 through and including 1897 for Pamela Conley was filed.

On March 7, Danielle Bowe sent James Lewis seizer list used on warrant return on March 5.

On March 8, Summon ticket was filed.

On March 11, ACO Jim McGonigal delivered summons tickes 1898 through and including 1909. Statements “ATTENTION!! To everyone that is interested in the dachshund we have seized”, “ For Adoptions We need to have everyone interested to fill out an adoption application”, and “For Rescue We need your 501c3 or state certification along with our rescue application filled out” posted on Chesterfield County, SC Animal Services face book page

On March 12, local newspaper “The Link” published article as to seized dogs reported to them by Danielle Bowe.

On March 18, Appellant requested motion of dismissal along with a list of violations at beginning of hearing, refused by Judge John A Davis giving belief to appellant of a bias and unfair hearing. Appellant was charged and fined for 10 counts of abandonment/neglect (47-1-70 not a county ordinance), 3 counts of Ill-treatment (47-1-40 not a county ordinance and not supported by warrant), and 8 counts of rabies (415.60 not a county ordinance and not supported by warrant). Appellant was fined a total of \$3500 reduced down from \$8100. Appellant forced to sign custody of dogs over to Animal Control due to financial distress caused by fines imposed. Asked for copy of anonymous E-mail and was denied.

On March 20, “Ok everyone the Dachshunds have been released to us!!! “ and “ Everything will be aranged with rescues tomorrow 3-21-13. Pick up and transport will not start until Friday 3-22-13.“ posted on Chesterfield County, SC Animal Services face book page (prior to appeal time limit).

On March 21, Statements “So, we are taking four of the Chesterfield case Dachshunds...yep! “, “Marie Bowman I saw all of them last night. They are all so beautiful. Thank you for saving these girls. Do you know if the others will be rescued as well? It looked like there was a lot of interest from other rescues too.”, “Yvonne Stollmaier So thankful you have rescued these babies! Saw an update early this afternoon. There are still 11 of these doxies that need homes-so sad ! Thank you for rescuing the ones for CLHR! March 21 at 11:34pm via mobile “ was posted on Carolina Loving Hound Rescue face book page.

On March 23, Statements “Jim Mcgonigal thanks for pulling them Brenda Like · Reply · 4 March 23 at 5:53pm.”, “Furever Angels Animal Rescue of Charlotte My pleasure Jim! Like · March 23 at 6:18pm.”, “Roxanne McQuaid Daugherty thank you Jim Mcgonigal! Like · March 23 at 8:01pm.”, and “Furever Angels Animal Rescue of Charlotte Erin, we just got her in our rescue today so we will be learning more about her in the next few days. Like · March 23 at 6:20pm.” was posted on Furever Angels Animal Rescue of Charlotte face book page.

On March 25, Appellant filed for appeal.

On March 28, Return of the criminal appeal filed.

On May 7, The Link (Chesterfield County local newspaper) published “County confiscates 40 dogs from breeder” article about Pamela Conley being bullied and dogs

being seized by Chesterfield County Animal Control.

On May 8, Appeal hearing in front of Judge J. Michael Baxley. Asked for copy of anonymous E-mail and was denied due to no prima facie evidence.(CT P. L ) Appeal was denied

On June 6, Notice of intent to appeal served On June 11, Proof of service of notice of intent to appeal served On June 14, Notice of appeal served On June 17, Request for transcript served On June 27, Appellant received request for transcript payment of \$103.50 On August 7, Payment for transcript served On August 15, Appellant received transcript and refund of difference minus expediting expense, total of \$81.25 and refund of \$16.25

On June 15, Served order of transcripts and notice of appeal\

On June 23, 2013 Received letter of payment notification

On August 7. 2013, Payment for transcripts was served

On August 15, Received transcript with omitted statements by Judge J. Michael Baxley

On August 28, Acquired return from Chesterfield County Clerk of Court and from Magistrates office (warrant return seized items list from clerk of courts office (not dated) differed from magistrates office(dated))

On Sep 4, Reorder transcript with omitted statements by Judge J. Michael Baxley

## ARGUMENTS

### I. BECAUSE JUDGE BAXLY WAS IMPATIENT AND HAD A PREJUDGEMENTAL ATTITUDE

With a prejudgment attitude and the outburst statement “With all this evidence against you, your lucky your not in jail” (purposely omitted by Pamela Ozment-Cartee, court reporter) by Judge Baxley (State v. Gillian, 373 S.C.601, 613, 646 S.E.2d 872, 878 (2007);State v. Gaster, 349 S.C. 545, 557, 564 S.E.2d 87, 93 (2002); State v. Wilson, 345 S.C. 1, 5, 545 S.E.2d 827, 829 (2001) while leaning towards appellant with papers in hand and arm outstretched, thereby giving belief that the decision of the hearing was already decided (Lisenba v. California, 314 U.S. 219, 236, 62 S.Ct. 280, 86 L.Ed. 166 (1941),State v. Lyles, 379 S.C. 328, 338, 665 S.E.2d 201, 206 (Ct. App. 2008). With an impatient attitude and consistence of interrupting appellant while giving testimony thereby not aloud to give full testimony and terminated court prior to full presentation of case and total disregard to facts of law. Appellant stated 4 times (R. p4 L17, p5 L2-3, p6 L4-5, and p7 L24 - p8 L1) as to affidavit (R. p. 31) did not support the search warrant (R. p. 33). The above statement also gave belief that the outburst was due to either due to the possible torte accusation made upon Judge Paul M. Burch (contacted by Darlington Clerk of Court in Feb 2013) for violating appellants rights to due process for case #2009-CP-16-540 (Rule ---3B(8), CJC, Rule 501, SCACR., of which have not received any decision as

of this date from hearing (State v. Chapman, 289 S.C. 42, 344 S.E.2d 611 (1986); State v. Smith, 307 S.C. 376, 415 S.E.2d 409 (Ct. App. 1992); State v. Robinson, 335 S.C. 620, 518 S.E.2d 269 (Ct. App.1999)) or from possible pictures of carcasses shown to appellant at Chesterfield Animal Shelter on 3/5/13 and that was not presented at magistrate court due to carcasses being found was not contested, thereby added after hearing for the sole purpose of emotional persuasion (State v. Holder, 382 S.C. 278, 288, 676 S.E.2d 690, 696 (2009)). With the statement “I don’t have that E-mail in my possession to give to you” by Baxley (R. p. 4, line 1-2) and lack of probable cause on stated on the affidavit or search warrant and the statement “I find that there was sufficient probable cause here” (R. p. 9, line 2) also by Baxley therefore Judge Baxley has violated Rule ---1A, CJC, Rule 501, SCACR, and Rule ---3B(2),B(4),B(5),B(8), B(9), CJC, Rule 501, SCACR.

**II. WITHOUT PRIMA FACIE EVIDENCE OF SAID E-MAIL, STATE CAN NOT PROVE COMPLAINT USED AS PROBABLE CAUSE ACTUALLY EXIST AND ALSO WOULD VIOLATE PROBABLE CAUSE REQUIREMENTS.**

With no prima facie evidence of said anonymous E-mail (Carlyle v. Tuomey Hosp., 305 S.C. 187, 193, 407 S.E.2d 630, 633 (1991),Conner v. City of Forest Acres, 363 S.C. 460, 467, 611 S.E.2d 905, 908 (2005)),stated by Foard “the e-mail is not actually contained in the return“ (R. p. 3, line 23-24) and stated by Baxley “I don’t have that e-mail in my possession to give you“ (R. p. 4, line 1-2) although Baxley stated “I see the E-mail” (R. p. 3, line 22), (§22-3-710, State v. Gillian, 373 S.C. 601, 613, 646 S.E.2d 872, 878 (2007), State v. Pagan, 369 S.C. 201, 208, 631 S.E.2d 262, 265 (2006), State v. Baker, 251 S.C. 108, 160 S.E.2d 556 (1968)) with the statement “..an anonymous tip of poor conditions for more than 30 canines..” (R. p. 5, L17-20) on the magistrates court order

(R. p. 2), and with only the appellant being the only person inside of residency within the past 4 years and with only 15 dogs outside and 6 of the dogs were one week old puppies, therefore it was impossible for anyone to have know how many dogs the appellant had prior to the search, State v. Pittman, 373 S.C. 527, 578, 647 S.E.2d 144, 170 (2007), (Rule 402, SCRE), to provide probable cause thereby animal control could not collected any information without conducting constitutional intrusion (State v. Weston, 329 S.C. 287, 494 S.E.2d 801 (1997), U.S. Const. amend. XIV). A welfare check can not be used to bypass the requirements of the Fourth Amendment for the purpose of a search especially when an anonymous complaint would also violate the Fourth Amendment or completely based on torte. With the above said, no requirements have been met to provide probable cause for a search warrant (Brinegar v. United States, 338, U.S. 160 (1949). With the above said, the State must prove the anonymous complaint, regardless as being E-mailed or called in, does not violate §16-17-725(A), and without prima facie evidence as to complaint, therefore the torte allocations and §16-17-725(A) violations fall upon ACO Jim McGonigal, Chesterfield County Animal Control, and Chesterfield County Sheriffs Office.

### III, DUE TO THE AUTHORITY TO CORRECT CLERICKLE ERRORS AND AMEND PLEADINGS

With the appellant as being a pro se, therefore the standards of which are applied should not be of the same level of standards as that of a lawyer Haines v. Kerner, 404 U.S. 519, 520-21, 92 S.Ct. 594, 30 L.Ed.2d 652 (1972); Estelle v. Gamble, 429 U.S. 97, 106, 97 S.Ct. 285, 292, 50 L.Ed.2d 251 (1976); Gillihan v. Shillinger, 872 F.2d 935, 938

(10th Cir.1989). With stating four separate times as to the affidavit not supporting the search warrant (R. p4 L17, p5 L2-3, p6 L4-5, and p7 L24 - p8 L1) also stated “the affidavit, the property that was sought is actually my address and does not have nothing to do with animal.” (R. p. 7, line 24) and “the search warrant has duality“ (R. p. 8, L 6, p. 33), Thereby Judge Baxley ignored all errors of law (§18-7-170. §18-7-180, §18-7-190) and with the failure to permit to call subpoenaed witnesses (ACO Jim McGonigal and Judge John A Davis due to a premature judgment an hearing closure) to testify towards their own errors of law and evidence due to inferior court not being conducted under oath (thereby based on false statements by ACO Jim McGonigal and not sworn testimony) and caused a bias and unfair hearing.

IV. WITHOUT PROBABLE CAUSE REQUIREMENTS MET, THEREBY THE SEARCH WARRANT VIOLATES THE FOURTH AMEMDMENT AND STATE CONSTITUTION.

Without probable cause established by affidavit (R. p. 32), (Carlyle v. Tuomey Hosp., 305 S.C. 187, 193, 407 S.E.2d 630, 633 (1991),Conner v. City of Forest Acres, 363 S.C. 460, 467, 611 S.E.2d 905, 908 (2005),State v. Weston, 329 S.C. 287, 494 S.E.2d 801 (1997)), and without reason stated for probable cause (State v. Winborne, 273 S.C. 62, 254 S.E.2d 297 (1979),McDonald v. United States, 335 U.S. 451, at 455-456, 69 S.Ct.191, 93 L.Ed. 153 (1948)), search and seizer conducted without a search warrant on 3/4/13 (see warrant return dated 3/5/13 (R. p. 34), appellants yard totally enclosed by woods with no possibility of plain view (R. p. 48), (State v. Crane, 296 S.C. 336, 341, 372 S.E.2d 587, 589 (1988), (State v. Missouri, 361 S.C. 107, 115, 603 S.E.2d 594, 598

(2004), (State v. Rivera, 384 S.C. 356, 361, 682 S.E.2d 307, 310 (Ct. App. 2009),(United States v. Gray, 491 F.3d 138, 145 (4th Cir. 2007) , making “good faith” unreasonable, with no prima facie complaint/probable cause (Silverthorne Lumber Co. v. United States, 251 U.S. 385, 40 S.Ct. 182, 64 L.Ed. [1920]) ) for actions of animal control to commit constitutional intrusion (State v. Richburg, 250 S.C. 451, 461, 158 S.E.2d 769, 773 (1968). Therefore causing search warrant in be invalid (State v. Blackwell-Selim, 392 S.C. 1, 4, 707 S.E.2d 426, 428 (2011)). Without requirements of probable cause, particular items to be seized, and particular place to be search being met, along with committing Barratry (§16-17-10 ), Conspiracy (§16-5-10,§16-17-410), and Tampering with evidence, ipso facto, Judge John A Davis violates Rule ---3B(2),B(5), CJC, Rule 501, SCACR and Rule ---3D(1), CJC, Rule 501, SCACR

**V. THE AFFIDAVIT DOES NOT SUPPORT THE SEARCH WARRANT DUE TO THE PARTICULAR REQUIREMENTS FOR ITEM SOUGHT AND PLACE TO BE SEARCHED ALSO DOES NOT STATE REASON FOR BELIEF, IPSO FACTO, NO PROBABLE CAUSE STABLISHED**

The affidavit fails to meet the requirements of particular items sought with having appellants physical address as item being sought (R. p. 32). Affidavit also fails to meet particular place to be search with only “property and dwelling” (R. p. 32) to be searched, at said address has approximately 11 acres of wooded land with residence, barn and yard in middle completely surrounded by wood. Affidavit does not give a reason for belief (R. p. 32), it gives a list that resembles wildlife (state owned). It does not state what type of crime was committed, when it was, where it was, or who committed it (State v. Winborne, 273 S.C. 62, 254 S.E.2d 297 (1979);State v. Randolph, 239 S.C. 79, 121 S.E.2d 349

(1961); State v. Williams, 297 S.C. 404, 377 S.E.2d 308 (1989), (See Silverthorne Lumber Co. v. United States, 251 U.S.385, 40 S.Ct. 182, 64 L.Ed. [1920]). Appellant also stated lack of support to Judge Davis at preliminary hearing and criminal hearing as motions to dismiss, ipso facto, knowingly and willing violate the appellants 4<sup>th</sup> amendments rights and cause for belief for a bias and unfair hearing along with conspiracy among Chesterfield sheriffs office, Chesterfield animal control and magistrate Judge John A Davis (State v. Williams, 297 S.C. 404, 377 S.E.2d 308 (1989)). At the end of preliminary hearing ACO Jim McGonigal stated “you wont get out of this on a technicality” directly to appellant and with the actions of the magistrate court, ipso facto, has committed Barratry (§16-17-10 ), Conspiracy (§16-17-410), and a Sham Legal Process (§16-17-735). Also, Mr. Foard stated “James Lewis the Affiant, did view malnourished and ill-treated animals, and a lack of food. He stated in the trial, which is contained in the return of the magistrate,” (R. p. 7, L 9-12) of which, James Lewis was only partially at the preliminary hearing and not at all at the hearing on march 18, along with no statement as in reference to viewing. Therefore Mr. Foard gave misleading and untrue statements to the court. (violating Rule 407, CJC, SCACR)

**VI. THE SEARCH WARRANT VIOLATE THE APPELLANTS FOURTH ADMENDMENTS RIGHTS DUE TO THE PARTICULAR REQUIREMENTS FOR ITEM SOUGHT AND PLACE TO BE SEARCHED NOT MET AND EXICUTED ONE DAY AFTER THE SEARCH CONDUCTED**

The search warrant (R. p. 33) fails to meet the particular requirements, with having appellants address as premises searched and “abandoned or neglected animal” as

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