ORIGINAL

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
IN THE COURT OF APPEALS

Appeal from Chesterfield County
Honorable J. Michael Baxley, Circuit Court Judge

Appellate Case No. 2013-001415

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA,

Respondent,

vs.

FRITZ ALLEN TIMMONS.

Appellant.

FINAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

ALAN WILSON
Attorney General

SALLEY W. ELLIOTT
Senior Assistant Deputy Attorney General
S.C. Bar No: 1871

Post Office Box 11549
Columbia, SC 29211
(803) 734-3727

WILLIAM B. ROGERS, JR.
Solicitor, Fourth Judicial Circuit

P.O. Box 616
Bennettsville, SC 29512
(843) 479-6516

ATTORNEYS FOR RESPONDENT

RECEIVED

AUG 28 2014

SC Court of Appeals

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
IN THE COURT OF APPEALS

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

ARGUMENT

This Court must affirm the dismissal of Appellant’s appeal by the circuit court when the appeal was improperly pled as a civil appeal and did not appropriately state the exceptions to the magistrate’s court judgment and when the seventeen issues presented to this Court were not properly raised to and ruled upon below; nevertheless the ruling on the limited issue Appellant presented to the magistrate at trial and construed by the circuit court as an issue of probable cause must be affirmed because the record supports the existence of probable cause. (Appellant’s Arguments 1 – 17).

Standard of Review

In criminal cases, appellate courts sit to review errors of law only. State v. Baccus, 367 S.C. 41, 48, 625 S.E.2d 216, 220 (2006). Decisions to admit or exclude evidence rests in the sound discretion of the trial judge and will only be reversed on appeal for an abuse of discretion. State v. Gaster, 349 S.C. 545, 557, 564 S.E.2d 87, 93 (2002). An abuse of discretion occurs when the trial court’s ruling is based upon an error of law or upon a factual conclusion that is without evidentiary support. State v. Wright, 391 S.C. 436, 706 S.E.2d 324 (2011). “A trial judge has considerable latitude in ruling on the admissibility of evidence and his rulings will not be disturbed absent a showing of probable prejudice.” State v. Kelley, 319 S.C. 173, 176, 460 S.E.2d 368, 370 (1995).

In criminal appeals from magistrate or municipal court, the circuit court does not conduct a de novo review, but instead reviews the case for preserved error raised to it by appropriate exception. S.C. Code Ann. § 14-25-105 (Supp.2013); S.C.Code Ann. § 18-3-70 (Rev. 2014); State v. Hoyle, 397 S.C. 622, 725 S.E.2d 720 (Ct. App. 2012); State v. Henderson, 347 S.C. 455, 457, 556 S.E.2d 691, 692 (Ct. App. 2001); City of Columbia v. Felder, 274 S.C. 12, 13, 260 S.E.2d 453, 454 (1979). In reviewing criminal cases, this Court may review errors of law only. State v. Cutter, 261 S.C. 140, 147, 199 S.E.2d 61, 65 (1973); State v. Head, 330 S.C. 79, 87, 498 S.E.2d 389, 393 (Ct.App.1997). “When there is any evidence, however slight, tending to prove

the issues involved, [the appellate court] may not question a magistrate court's findings of fact that were approved by a circuit court on appeal.” S. Carolina Law Enforcement Div. v. 1-Speedmaster S/N 00218, 397 S.C. 94, 96, 723 S.E.2d 809, 810 (Ct. App. 2011) (quoting Allendale Cnty. Sheriff's Office v. Two Chess Challenge II, 361 S.C. 581, 585, 606 S.E.2d 471, 473 (2004). “The circuit court ‘may either confirm the sentence appealed from, reverse or modify it, or grant a new trial.’” State v. Hoyle, 397 S.C. at 625, 725 S.E.2d at 722. Review by this Court in criminal cases is limited to correcting orders of the circuit court for errors of law. Id. It is Appellant’s obligation to present an appropriate record on appeal, including moving the magistrate to correct the Return, if necessary. Price v. Pickens County, 308 S.C. 64, 416 S.E.2d 666 (Ct. App. 1992); State v. Barbee, 280 S.C. 328, 313 S.E.2d 297 (1984); State v. Adams, 244 S.C. 323, 137 S.E.2d 100 (1964). Any issue presented to this Court for consideration on appeal must have been raised to and ruled upon below. Price v. Pickens County, 308 S.C. at 64, 416 S.E.2d at 666. Specifically, the circuit court may not consider a question not presented to the magistrate, Indigo Associates v. Ryan Investment Co., 314 S.C. 519, 431 S.E.2d 271 (Ct.App. 1994), and this Court may not consider an issue not raised to the circuit court. A & I, Inc. v. Gore, 366 S.C. 233, 621 S.E.2d 383 (Ct.App. 2005).

When reviewing a Fourth Amendment search and seizure issue, the appellate court is limited to determining if there is any evidence to support the trial court’s findings and must affirm if there is any evidence to support the rulings. State v. Baccus, 367 S.C. 41, 625 S.E.2d 216 (2006); State v. Flowers, 360 S.C. 1, 598 S.E.2d 725 (Ct.App. 2004); State v. Brockman, 339 S.C. 57, 528 S.E.2d 661 (2000).

I. Appellant fails to seek an appropriate remedy on appeal.

In his brief, Appellant, for the first time, seeks four remedies, including: the return of all dogs seized by the County; Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000.00) per dog; public apologies from various animal shelters; and, criminal investigation and termination of employment upon six individuals involved in his criminal conviction, including three judges. None of these issues or requests was presented below and may not now be considered on appeal.

At the circuit court hearing on Appellant's appeal from magistrate's court, the State noted its difficulty in construing whether Appellant sought a specific remedy. On appeal, Appellant has certainly included specific remedies; however, Appellant did not preserve these remedies for appellate review because he made no mention of them at the magistrate court trial or the circuit court hearing. State v. Dunbar, 356 S.C. 138, 142, 587 S.E.2d 691, 693-94 (2003) (stating that issues not raised and ruled upon in the trial court will not be considered on appeal.). The circuit court may not consider a question not presented to the magistrate, Indigo Associates v. Ryan Investment Co., 314 S.C. 519, 431 S.E.2d 271 (Ct.App. 1994), and this Court may not consider an issue not raised to the circuit court. A & I, Inc. v. Gore, 366 S.C. 233, 621 S.E.2d 383 (Ct.App. 2005).

Preservation issues aside, Appellant's alleged remedies are inappropriate for the constitutional violation he raises. The Fourth Amendment to the United States Constitution protects people from unreasonable searches and seizures and provides that no warrants shall be issued except upon probable cause, supported by oath or affirmation and particularly describing the place to be searched and the persons or things to be seized. U.S. Const. amend. IV; see also Baccus, 367 S.C. at 50, 625 S.E.2d at 221 (stating a search warrant may be issued only upon a finding of probable cause). "A search compromises the individual interest in privacy; a seizure

deprives the individual of dominion over his or her person or property.” State v. Brown, 401 S.C. 82, 88, 736 S.E.2d 263, 266 (2012), reh'g denied (Jan. 24, 2013), cert. denied, 133 S. Ct. 2779, 186 L. Ed. 2d 227 (U.S.S.C. 2013); State v. Wright, 391 S.C. 436, 442, 706 S.E.2d 324, 327 (2011) (quoting Horton v. California, 496 U.S. 128, 133, 110 S.Ct. 2301, 110 L.Ed.2d 112 (1990)).

The Fourth Amendment itself provides no remedy for a violation of the warrant requirement. Brown, 401 S.C. at 88, 736 S.E.2d at 266; Davis v. United States, —U.S. —, 131 S.Ct. 2419, (2011). However, the United States Supreme Court has fashioned a judicially-created remedy, the exclusionary rule, which bars the prosecution from introducing evidence obtained in violation of the Fourth Amendment. Id.; See Mapp v. Ohio, 367 U.S. 643, 653-57, 81 S. Ct. 1684, 1690-93. “The rule’s sole purpose, [the Supreme Court] has repeatedly held, is to deter future Fourth Amendment violations.” Id. (quoting Davis, —U.S. —, 131 S.Ct. at 2426).

Moreover, Appellant did not object to the production of any evidence against him or move to suppress the evidence at the magistrate court trial or the circuit court hearing. Instead, he moved to dismiss the charges. Motions to dismiss the charges were inappropriate requests and remedies. Without more, the magistrate cannot dismiss the State’s case before trial. State v. Ramsey, 381 S.C. 375, 673 S.E.2d 428 (2009); State v. Needs, 333 S.C. 134, 508 S.E.2d 857 (1998); State v. Thrift, 312 S.C. 282, 440 S.E.2d 341 (1994).

Now, Appellant contends that multiple state officials violated his Fourth Amendment rights. Although the Fourth Amendment does not provide a specific remedy, it allows for the exclusion of evidence upon proper objection by the accused. The remedies Appellant seeks, disregarding the fact they are not properly preserved, are not appropriate remedies for a Fourth

Amendment violation.² Thus, this Court should affirm the decisions of the lower courts because Appellant has not provided an adequate basis for appeal.

II. Appellant did not properly preserve the issues for appeal.

An argument not raised to and ruled on by the trial court is not preserved for appeal. State v. Nichols, 325 S.C. 111, 481 S.E.2d 118 (1997) (objection must be entered on a specific ground at trial to preserve an appeal); Humbert v. State, 345 S.C. 332, 548 S.E.2d 862 (2001). “The objection should be sufficiently specific to bring into focus the precise nature of the alleged error so that it can be reasonably understood by the trial judge.” Id. “The same ground argued on appeal must have been argued to the trial judge.” Id. The failure to object when evidence is offered constitutes a waiver of the right to raise the issue on appeal. State v. Simpson, 325 S.C.37, 42, 479 S.E.2d 57, 60 (1996). An issue must be raised to and ruled upon by the circuit court in order to be considered on appeal. State v. Lopez, 352 S.C. 373, 378, 574 S.E.2d 210, 213 (Ct. App. 2002). South Carolina does not recognize the plain error rule. “The appellants have the responsibility to identify errors on appeal, not the Court.” Kennedy v. South Carolina Ret. Sys., 349 S.C. 531, 532-33, 564 S.E.2d 322, 322-23 (2001). “An issue that was not preserved for review should not be addressed by the Court of Appeals. . .” State v. Dunbar, 356 S.C. 138, 142, 587 S.E.2d 691, 693-94 (2003) (citing Hendrix v. E. Distrib., Inc., 320 S.C. 218, 219, 464 S.E.2d 112, 113 (1995)). The circuit court may not consider a question not presented to the magistrate, Indigo Associates v. Ryan Investment Co., 314 S.C. at 519, 431 S.E.2d at 271, and this Court may not consider an issue not raised to the circuit court. A & I, Inc. v. Gore, 366 S.C. at 233, 621 S.E.2d at 383.

² It appears Appellant seeks monetary and injunctive relief against certain state officials, more akin to a section 1983 claim and remedy. See Monell v. Dep't of Soc. Servs. of City of New York, 436 U.S. 658, 673, 98 S. Ct. 2018, 2027 (1978).

In his brief, Appellant raises seventeen “counts” describing various alleged violations in his criminal proceeding. Approximately fifteen of those “counts” constitute arguments raised by Appellant for the first time and are not preserved for appellate review. See State v. Freiburger, 366 S.C. 125, 134, 620 S.E.2d 737, 741 (2005) (ruling the argument advanced on appeal was not raised and ruled on below and therefore was not preserved for review). The only issues raised at trial and preserved for review by the circuit court were the contentions that the email did not provide sufficient probable cause to support the search warrant and that the search warrant lacked specificity as to the property to be searched.

It appears the other two “counts” raised by Appellant in his brief are based on alleged Fourth Amendment violations. Specifically, Appellant seems to argue that the warrant issued to search his residence was not based on probable cause and the warrant itself did not properly describe the property to be searched. However, Appellant failed to allege these violations with sufficient clarity at the circuit court hearing and magistrate court trial. See Humbert v. State, 345 S.C. 332, 548 S.E.2d 862 (2001) (“The objection should be sufficiently specific to bring into focus the precise nature of the alleged error so that it can be reasonably understood by the trial judge.”). It was Appellant’s obligation to allege with specificity the exceptions upon which his appeal was based in the Notice of Appeal from the magistrate’s court conviction to the circuit court. Judge Baxley correctly determined that Appellant’s conclusory exceptions were too broad and insufficient to allege grounds for appeal. See State v. Sullivan, 310 S.C. 311, 426 S.E.2d 766 (1992)(stating the scope of the exception on appeal was too broad to constitute a sufficient ground for appeal to the circuit court in that it failed to apprise the parties and courts of the ground for appeal). The exceptions listed in Appellant’s notice of appeal from the magistrate

court were too broad and conclusory for the State and the circuit court to know the specific ground for appeal.

In his brief, Appellant cites State v. Winborne, 273 S.C. 62, 254 S.E.2d 297 (1979), and argues the affidavit to support the warrant does not properly state what type of crime was committed, when it was, where it was, or who committed it. However, Appellant failed to raise this specific issue in the trial and circuit courts and the issue is not properly preserved. Although the record reflects that Appellant argued the affidavit did not support the warrant, he did not allege any specific deficiencies with the affidavit, other than the baseless argument that the warrant did not contain the correct Property address or correctly describe the property to be searched, leaving the Court guessing as to which ground on which he based his objection. See State v. Johnson, 363 S.C. 53, 58, 609 S.E.2d 520, 523 (2005) (“The objection should be addressed to the trial court in a sufficiently specific manner that brings attention to the exact error.”).

Also, at the magistrate court trial, Appellant only argued the e-mail was not a proper basis for obtaining the search warrant. On the contrary, law enforcement used its first-hand observations of the disturbing conditions of the canines on Appellant’s Property as the basis of the search warrant.³ Thus, the record reflects that law enforcement did not use the e-mail as a basis for the search warrant. (Supp. R. pp. 4; 39 – 40). Also, at the circuit court hearing, Appellant made no response to the court’s inquiry regarding probable cause in support of the affidavit. Rather, Appellant merely argued the property sought in the warrant had “nothing to do with animals.” Furthermore, in his brief, Appellant offers *many* allegations in support of his

³ The issue of whether law enforcement was in a lawful position to view the poor conditions of the canines on which the warrant was issued is addressed in Issue III, infra.

theory that the warrant did not specifically describe the property to be searched. Despite Appellant's contentions, the warrant did sufficiently describe the property to be searched and included the proper address of the Property. Notably, at the magistrate court trial and the circuit court hearing, Appellant *only* argued that the warrant was not specific as the premises to be searched at his Property.⁴ However, the search warrant described the premises to be searched with the specific address and further stated that the property or items to be searched for were neglected or abandoned animals. (Supp. r. p. 64). The search warrant affidavit further described the premises as the dwelling and property at the specific address. (Supp. R. p. 65). The County plainly stated that only one home was located on the premises. (Supp. R. p. 4). Therefore, this Court should affirm the decisions of the lower courts because Appellant did not properly preserve the issues for appellate review.

III. The warrant issued by the magistrate judge was sufficiently supported by probable cause because the officers viewed the incriminating evidence on the Property from a lawful vantage point free from Fourth Amendment intrusion.

Even if this Court finds the issue of probable cause to support the search warrant was properly preserved, the State submits that the record clearly established that the anonymous e-mail did not serve as probable cause for the search warrant. Rather, the search warrant was

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